

2nd Edition

Hedge Funds



Set up a strategy that will deliver results

Diversify your portfolio and put hedge funds to work for you

Learn how to calculate risk and return

Ann C. Logue, MBA

Author, *Day Trading For Dummies*

Hedge Funds





Hedge Funds

2nd Edition

by Ann C. Logue



Hedge Funds For Dummies®, 2nd Edition

Published by
Wiley Publishing, Inc.
111 River St.
Hoboken, NJ 07030-5774
www.wiley.com

Copyright © 2023 by Wiley Publishing, Inc., Indianapolis, Indiana

Published by Wiley Publishing, Inc., Indianapolis, Indiana

Published simultaneously in Canada

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, scanning, or otherwise, except as permitted under Sections 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act, without either the prior written permission of the Publisher, or authorization through payment of the appropriate per-copy fee to the Copyright Clearance Center, 222 Rosewood Drive, Danvers, MA 01923, 978-750-8400, fax 978-646-8600. Requests to the Publisher for permission should be addressed to the Legal Department, Wiley Publishing, Inc., 10475 Crosspoint Blvd., Indianapolis, IN 46256, 317-572-3447, fax 317-572-4355, or online at http://www.wiley.com/go/permissions.

Trademarks: Wiley, the Wiley Publishing logo, For Dummies, the Dummies Man logo, A Reference for the Rest of Us!, The Dummies Way, Dummies Daily, The Fun and Easy Way, Dummies.com and related trade dress are trademarks or registered trademarks of John Wiley & Sons, Inc. and/or its affiliates in the United States and other countries, and may not be used without written permission. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. Wiley Publishing, Inc., is not associated with any product or vendor mentioned in this book.

LIMIT OF LIABILITY/DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY: WHILE THE PUBLISHER AND AUTHORS HAVE USED THEIR BEST EFFORTS IN PREPARING THIS WORK, THEY MAKE NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THE CONTENTS OF THIS WORK AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. NO WARRANTY MAY BE CREATED OR EXTENDED BY SALES REPRESENTATIVES, WRITTEN SALES MATERIALS OR PROMOTIONAL STATEMENTS FOR THIS WORK. THE FACT THAT AN ORGANIZATION, WEBSITE, OR PRODUCT IS REFERRED TO IN THIS WORK AS A CITATION AND/OR POTENTIAL SOURCE OF FURTHER INFORMATION DOES NOT MEAN THAT THE PUBLISHER AND AUTHORS ENDORSE THE INFORMATION OR SERVICES THE ORGANIZATION, WEBSITE, OR PRODUCT MAY PROVIDE OR RECOMMENDATIONS IT MAY MAKE. THIS WORK IS SOLD WITH THE UNDERSTANDING THAT THE PUBLISHER IS NOT ENGAGED IN RENDERING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. THE ADVICE AND STRATEGIES CONTAINED HEREIN MAY NOT BE SUITABLE FOR YOUR SITUATION. YOU SHOULD CONSULT WITH A SPECIALIST WHERE APPROPRIATE. FURTHER, READERS SHOULD BE AWARE THAT WEBSITES LISTED IN THIS WORK MAY HAVE CHANGED OR DISAPPEARED BETWEEN WHEN THIS WORK WAS WRITTEN AND WHEN IT IS READ. NEITHER THE PUBLISHER NOR AUTHORS SHALL BE LIABLE FOR ANY LOSS OF PROFIT OR ANY OTHER COMMERCIAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR OTHER DAMAGES.

For general information on our other products and services, please contact our Customer Care Department within the U.S. at 800-762-2974, outside the U.S. at 317-572-3993, or fax 317-572-4002.

For technical support, please visit www.wiley.com/techsupport.

Wiley also publishes its books in a variety of electronic formats. Some content that appears in print may not be available in electronic books.

Library of Congress Control Number: 2022950266

ISBN 978-1-119-90755-8 (pbk); ISBN 978-1-119-90756-5 (ebk); ISBN 978-1-119-90757-2 (ebk)

Contents at a Glance

Introduction
Part 1: What Is a Hedge Fund, Anyway?
CHAPTER 1: Hedge Funds: Alternative Assets and Alternative Strategies
CHAPTER 2: Not Just a Sleeping Aid: Analyzing SEC Registration
CHAPTER 4: Using Hedge-Fund Strategies without the Hedge Funds
CHAPTER 5: Hedging through Research and Asset Selection
CHAPTERS. Treaging an ough research and research and research
Part 2: Looking at Alternative Strategies93
CHAPTER 6: Calculating Investment Risk and Return95
CHAPTER 7: Buying Low, Selling High: Using Arbitrage in Hedge Funds123
CHAPTER 8: Short-Selling, Leveraging, and Other Equity Strategies
CHAPTER 9: Observing How Hedge Funds Profit from the Corporate
Life Cycle159
CHAPTER 10: Macro Funds: Looking for Global Trends
Part 3: Determining Whether Alternative
Investments Are Right for You
CHAPTER 11: Fitting Alternatives into a Portfolio
CHAPTER 12: Examining How Hedge Funds Are Structured
CHAPTER 13: But Will You Make Money? Evaluating Hedge Fund Performance223
CHAPTER 14: You Want Your Money When? Balancing Time and Liquidity 245
CHAPTER 15: Taxes, Responsibilities, Transparency, and Other Investment
Considerations257
Part 4 Chariel Considerations Beganding
Part 4: Special Considerations Regarding
Hedge Funds273
CHAPTER 16: Hooking onto Other Types of Hedge Funds
CHAPTER 17: Hiring a Consultant to Help You with Hedge Funds
CHAPTER 18: Doing Due Diligence on a Hedge Fund
Part 5: The Part of Tens317
CHAPTER 19: Ten (Plus One) Big Myths about Hedge Funds
CHAPTER 20: Ten Good Reasons to Invest in a Hedge Fund
Index

Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION	1
About This Book	1
Conventions Used in This Book	2
What You're Not to Read	2
Foolish Assumptions	3
How This Book Is Organized	
Part 1: What Is a Hedge Fund, Anyway?	
Part 2: Looking at Alternative Investment Strategies	4
Part 3: Determining Whether Alternative Investments	
Are Right For You	
Part 4: Special Considerations Regarding Hedge Funds	
Part 5: The Part of Tens	
Icons Used in This Book	
Beyond the Book	
A Final Note	
A Filial Note	0
PART 1: WHAT IS A HEDGE FUND, ANYWAY?	7
CHAPTER 1: Hedge Funds: Alternative Assets and	
Alternative Strategies	9
Defining Hedge Funds	10
Defining Alternative Strategies	
Absolute-return strategies	
Directional strategies	
Introducing Some Basic Concepts	12
Alternative, to what?	12
Generating alpha	
Identifying hedge funds: The long explanation	
Pledging the secret society: Getting hedge fund information	
Meeting the People in Your Hedge Fund Neighborhood	
Managers: Hedging for you	
Lawyers: Following the rules	19
Consultants: Studying funds and advising investors	
Paying Fees in a Hedge Fund	20
Paying Fees in a Hedge Fund	20 21

CHAPTER 2:	Not Just a Sleeping Aid: Analyzing SEC Registration	25
	Looking at Securities Laws. Reviewing Regulation D Accredited investors What's in it for the funds? Having Fun with 40 Act Funds Getting to Know the SEC's Stance on Hedge Fund Regulation Realizing that "registered" doesn't mean "approved" Addressing registration at the state level Going Coastal: Avoiding the Registration Debate through Offshore Funds Investing in a Fund without Registration Contracting the manager's terms Covering yourself with due diligence	26 27 27 28 29 32 33 34 35
CHAPTER 3:	How to Buy into a Hedge Fund	39
	Using Consultants and Brokers	40
	Marketing to and for Hedge Fund Managers	
	Investor, Come on Down: Pricing Funds	
	Calculating net asset value	
	Valuing illiquid securities	
	Managing side pockets	
	Purchasing Your Stake in the Fund	
	Fulfilling paperwork requirements	
	Reporting to the taxman	
	Signing Your Name on the Bottom Line	
	Drawing up the contract	
	Addressing typical contract provisions	
	Finding room for negotiation	50
CHAPTER 4:	Using Hedge-Fund Strategies without	
	the Hedge Funds	51
	A Diversified Portfolio Is a Hedged Portfolio	52
	A slow-and-steady strategy works over the long run	
	But some investors want to hit a home run NOW5	54
	Exploring Your Expanding Asset Universe	
	Rounding up the usual asset alternatives	
	Other assets you may not have considered	
	Structuring a Hedge-Filled Portfolio	
	Recognizing natural hedges6	

	Utilizing Margin and Leverage in Your Accounts	62
	Derivatives for leverage and hedging	64
	Short-selling as a hedging and leverage strategy	67
	More leverage! Other sources of borrowed funds	68
	Hedge Fund Strategies in Mutual Funds and ETFs	68
	Bear funds	69
	Inverse Funds	69
	Leveraged Funds	70
	Long-short mutual funds	70
	Mutual fund of funds	70
CHAPTER 5:	Hedging through Research and Asset Selection	71
	First Things First: Examining Your Asset Options	72
	Sticking to basics: Traditional asset classes	
	Going for some flavor: Alternative assets	75
	Custom products and private deals	81
	Kicking the Tires: Fundamental Research	83
	Top-down analysis	84
	Bottom-up analysis	86
	Focusing on finances: Accounting research	87
	Gnawing on the numbers: Quantitative research	
	Reading the charts: Technical analysis	87
	How a Hedge Fund Puts Research Findings to Work	89
	The long story: Buying appreciating assets	89
	The short story: Selling depreciating assets	90
PART 2	: LOOKING AT ALTERNATIVE STRATEGIES	93
CHAPTER 6:	Calculating Investment Risk and Return	95
	Market Efficiency and You, the Hedge Fund Investor	96
	Why efficiency matters	
	Perusing profitable inefficiencies	97
	Efficiency and the random walk	97
	Using the Modern (Markowitz) Portfolio Theory (MPT)	98
	So what's risky?	99
	Reviewing risk types in the MPT	101
	Distributing risk	
	Determining the market rate of return	105
	Beta: Ranking market return	106
	A different approach with alternative beta	108
	Alpha: Return beyond standard deviation	
	The Arbitrage Pricing Theory (APT): Expanding the MPT	109
	Discovering How Interest Rates Affect the Investment Climate	110
	Seeing what goes into an interest rate	
	Relating interest rates and hedge funds	
	Witnessing the power of compound interest	113

	Investing Irrationally: Behavioral Finance Examining the principles of behavioral finance Applying behavioral finance to hedge funds	117
CHAPTER 7:	Buying Low, Selling High: Using Arbitrage	
	in Hedge Funds	123
	Putting Arbitrage to Good Use	124
	Understanding arbitrage and market efficiency	125
	Factoring transaction costs into arbitrage	126
	Pitting true arbitrage versus risk arbitrage	127
	Cracking Open the Arbitrageur's Toolbox	
	Drawing upon derivatives	
	Using leverage	
	Short-selling	
	Synthetic securities	
	Flipping through the Rolodex of Arbitrage Types	
	Capital structure arbitrage Convertible arbitrage	
	Fixed-income arbitrage	
	Index arbitrage	
	Liquidation arbitrage	
	Merger arbitrage	
	Option arbitrage	
	Pairs trading	
	Scalping	135
	Statistical arbitrage	137
	Warrant arbitrage	137
CHAPTER 8:	Short-Selling, Leveraging, and Other	
	Equity Strategies	139
	Short-Selling versus Leveraging: A Brief Overview	140
	Strutting in the Equity Style Show	
	Trying on a large cap	141
	Fitting for a small cap	
	Investing according to growth and GARP	
	Swooping in on lowly equities with value investing	
	Keeping options open for special-style situations	144
	Market Neutrality: Taking the Market out of Hedge Fund Performance	111
	Being beta neutral	
	Establishing dollar neutrality	
	Staying sector neutral	
	Rebalancing a Portfolio.	
	Long-Short Funds	

1	Making Market Calls	153
	Investing with event-driven bets	154
	Taking advantage of market timing	154
F	Putting the Power of Leverage to Use	155
	Buying on margin	155
	Gaining return with other forms of borrowing	
	Observing How Hedge Funds Profit	
	from the Corporate Life Cycle	159
[Examining the Corporate Structure (And How Hedge	
F	Funds Enter the Picture)	
	Observing the relationship between owners and managers	
	Pitting business skills versus investment skills	162
Į.	From to Ventures to Vultures: Participating in Corporate	
Ĺ	Life Cycles	163
	Identifying venture capital and private equity as hedge	161
	fund investments Project finance: Are hedge funds replacing banks?	165
	Gaining return from company mergers and acquisitions	167
	Investing in troubled and dying companies with vulture funds	169
	valtare rands	103
CHAPTER 10:	Macro Funds: Looking for Global Trends	173
	Fathoming Macroeconomics	
	Focusing on fiscal policy	
	Making moves with monetary policy	
	Taking Special Issues for Macro Funds into Consideration	
	Diversified, yes. Riskless, no	
	Global financial expertise	
	Subadvisers	
	The multinational conundrum	
\	Widening or Narrowing Your Macro Scope	
•	Coming to terms with currencies	
	Contemplating commodities	
PART 3:	DETERMINING WHETHER ALTERNATIVE	
INVEST	MENTS ARE RIGHT FOR YOU	189
	Fitting Alternatives into a Portfolio	
A	Assaying Asset Allocations	192
	Matching goals to money	192
	Chasing return versus allocating assets	193
Į	Using Hedge Funds as an Asset Class	194
	How hedge funds are assets	194
	Diversification, risk, and return: How the asset pros	
	and cons play out	197

\	/iewing a Hedge Fund as an Overlay	
	Considering the overlay pros and cons	
_	Investment reporting: An overlay example	
ľ	Mixing and Matching Your Funds	
	Looking for excess capital under the couch cushions	
	Taking different funds to the dressing room	
	Working without transparency	203
CHAPTER 12:	Examining How Hedge Funds Are Structured .	205
E	Exploring the Uneven Relationships between Fund Partners	
	General partners: Controlling the fund	206
	Limited partners: Investing in the fund	207
(Only Accredited or Qualified Investors Need Apply	208
	Which kind of investor are you?	208
	Why do hedge fund investors need to be accredited?	210
	Do funds really check up on you?	210
	Do I have alternatives if I don't qualify?	211
F	Following the Cash Flow within a Hedge Fund	211
	Waiting for withdrawals and distributions	212
	Fee, Fi, Fo, Cha-Ching! Paying the Fees Associated	
V	with Hedge Funds	
	Management fees	
	Sales charges	
	Performance fees	
	Redemption fees	
	Commissions	
[Dealing with the Hedge Fund Manager	
	Making time for meetings	
	Communicating with the written word	
9	Seeking Alternatives to Hedge Funds	
	Making mutual funds and ETFs work for you	
	Profiting from pooled accounts	
	Entering individually managed accounts	221
CHAPTER 13:	But Will You Make Money? Evaluating	
	Hedge Fund Performance	223
	Measuring a Hedge Fund's Risk and Return	
	Reviewing the return	
	Sizing up the risk	
E	Benchmarks for Evaluating a Fund's Risk and Return	
	Looking into indexes	
	Picking over peer rankings	
	Standardizing performance calculation: Global Investment	
	Porformanco Standardo	226

Putting Risk and Return into Context with Academic Measures .	237
Sharpe measure	237
Treynor measure	238
Jensen's alpha	238
The appraisal ratio	239
Serving Yourself with a Reality Check on Hedge Fund Returns	239
Risk and return tradeoff	240
Survivor bias	240
Performance persistence	241
Style persistence	
Hiring a Reporting Service to Track Hedge Fund Performance	
Backstop BarclayHedge	242
eVestment	
Hedge Fund Research	242
Morningstar	
Refinitiv	243
Van	243
Var. Mant Var. Manar Mhan 2 Dalan sina	
CHAPTER 14: You Want Your Money When? Balancing	
Time and Liquidity	
Considering Your Cash Needs	246
Like Dollars through the Hourglass: Determining	
Your Time Horizon	
Taking stock of temporary funds	
Fathoming matched assets and liability	
Peeking into permanent funds	
Poring Over Your Principal Needs	
Handling Liquidity After You Make Your Initial Investment	
Taking advantage of additional investments	
Knowing when (and how) you can withdraw funds	
Receiving distributions	
Moving on after disbandment	255
Tayor Dognonsibilities Transparency	
CHAPTER 15: Taxes, Responsibilities, Transparency,	
and Other Investment Considerations	257
Taxing You, the Hedge Fund Investor (Hey, It's Better	250
than Death!)	
Making sense of capital-gains taxes	
Taxing ordinary income	
Exercising your right to be exempt	
Figuring Out Your Fiduciary Responsibility	
Coming to terms with common law	
Tackling trust law	
Uniform Management of Institutional Funds Act (UMIFA) \dots	
Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA) of 1972	266

Appraising p Interpreting Avoiding win	Hedge Funds: Rare but There 2 ositions 2 risk 2 dow dressing 2 Environment, Society, and Governance 2	268 269 270
	ONSIDERATIONS REGARDING	273
Multi-Strategy For Determining Dividing in-how Scoping the part of Funds of Funds: Surveying for Highlighting Acknowledgi Multiple fund Advancing to making this of Hedge Funds by	to Other Types of Hedge Funds Inds: Pursuing a Range of Investment Strategies the strategies	276 276 277 278 279 279 280 282 283
with Hedge Who Consultant What Do Consul Analyzing pe Determining Putting a hed Optimizing y Managing a l Consultants Hunting for the Following red Performing a Managing Confliction Compensating Consultants Hard-dollar consultants	Funds S Work For tants Do (Besides Consult)? rformance. your investment objectives. lge fund manger under the microscope our portfolio. Request for Proposal (RFP). and funds of funds Hedge Fund Grail: A Qualified Consultant. commendations and referrals nother round of due diligence cts of Interest. consultants onsultants onsultants	290 290 290 291 292 292 293 294 295 295 296 297 298
	y the Consultants, Too	

CHAPTER 18:	Doing Due Diligence on a Hedge Fund	301
V	Vhy Do Due Diligence?	.302
В	ecoming Your Own Magnum, I.I.: Investment Investigator	.303
	First things first: Knowing what to ask	.304
	Interviewing the hedge fund manager	
	Poring over fund literature	
	Picking up the phone	
	Searching Internet databases	
	Seeking help from service providers	
	More assistance with due diligence	.311
W	What Are You Gonna Do When the Hedge Fund Does	242
	Oue Diligence on YOU!	
K	nowing the Limits of Due Diligence	.313
PART 5:	THE PART OF TENS	317
	Ten (Plus One) Big Myths about Hedge Funds \dots	
Α	Hedge Fund Is Like a Mutual Fund with Better Returns	.319
H	ledge Funds Are Asset Classes That Should Be	
	Diversified Portfolios	
	Ipha Is Real and Easy to Find	.320
	Fund That Identifies an Exotic and Effective Strategy Is Set	221
	orever	
	ledge Funds Hedge Risk	
	he Hedge Fund Industry Is Secretive and Mysterious	
	he Hedge Fund Industry Loves Exotic Securitieshe	
	ledge Funds Are Sure-Fire Ways to Make Money	
	ledge Funds Are Only for the "Big Guys"	
	Il Hedge Fund Managers Are Brilliant	
,,	in reage rand managers the Brilliane	.52 1
CHAPTER 20: T	en Good Reasons to Invest in a Hedge Fund	325
Н	lelping You Reduce Risk	.325
	Ielping You Weather Market Conditions	
	ncreasing Your Total Diversification	
Ir	ncreasing Your Absolute Return	.327
Ir	ncreasing Returns for Tax-Exempt Investors	.328
Н	Ielping Smooth Out Returns	.328
G	iiving You Access to Broad Asset Categories	.329
E	xploiting Market Inefficiencies Quickly	.329
	und Managers Tend to Be the Savviest Investors	
	n the Street	.330
Ir	ncentives for Hedge Fund Managers Are Aligned	220
W	vith Your Needs	.330
INDEX		333
		、ココゴ

Introduction

ou've seen the headlines in the financial press. You've heard the rumors about mythical investment funds that make money no matter what happens in the market. And you want a part of that action.

I have to be upfront: Hedge funds aren't newfangled mutual funds, and they aren't for everyone. They're private partnerships that pursue high finance. If you don't mind a little risk, you can net some high returns for your portfolio. However, you have to meet strict limits put in place by the Securities and Exchange Commission — namely that you have a net worth of at least \$1 million or an annual income of \$200,000. Most hedge-fund investors are institutions, like pensions, foundations, and endowments; if you work for an institution, you definitely need to know about hedge funds. I also have to let you in on a little secret: Not all hedge fund mangers are performing financial alchemy. Many of the techniques they use are available to any investor who wants to increase return relative to the amount of risk taken.

Hedge Funds For Dummies tells you what you need to know, whether you want to research an investment in hedge funds for yourself or for a pension, an endowment, or a foundation. I also give you information about investment theories and practices that apply to other types of investments so you can expand your portfolio. Even if you decide that hedge funds aren't for you, you can increase the return and reduce the risk in your portfolio by using some of the same techniques that hedge fund managers use. After all, not everything fund managers do requires a PhD in applied finance, and not everything in the world of investing is expensive, difficult, and inaccessible.

About This Book

First, let me tell you what this book is not: It is not a textbook, and it is not a guide for professional investors. You can find several of those books on the market already, and they are fabulous in their own right. But they can be dry, and they assume that readers have plenty of underlying knowledge.

This book is designed to be simple. It assumes that you don't know much about hedge funds, but that you're a smart person who needs or wants to know about

them. I require no calculus or statistics prerequisite; I just give you straightforward explanations of what you need to know to understand how hedge funds are structured, the different investment styles that hedge fund managers use, and how you can check out a fund before you invest.

Conventions Used in This Book

I'll start with the basics. I put important words that I define in *italic* font. I often **bold** the key words of bulleted or numbered lists to bring the important ideas to your attention. And I place all Web addresses in monofont for easy access.

I've thrown some investment theory into this book. You don't need to know this information to invest in hedge funds, but I think it's helpful to know what people are thinking when they set up a portfolio. I also make an effort to introduce you to some technical terms that will come up in the investment world. I don't want you to be caught short in a meeting where a fund manager talks about generating alpha through a multifactorial arbitrage model that includes behavioral parameters. Many hedge fund managers are MBAs or even PhDs, and two notorious ones have Nobel Prizes. Folks in the business really do talk this way! (To alert you to these topics, I often place them under Technical Stuff icons; see the section "Icons Used in This Book.")

During printing of this book, some of the Web addresses may have broken across two lines of text. If you come across such an address, rest assured that I haven't put in any extra characters (such as hyphens) to indicate the break. When using a broken Web address, type in exactly what you see on the page, pretending as though the line break doesn't exist.

What You're Not to Read

I include sidebars in the book that you don't need to read in order to follow the chapter text. With that stated, though, I do encourage you to go back and read through the material when you have the time. Many of the sidebars contain practice examples that help you get a better idea of how some of the investment concepts work.

You can also skip the text marked with a Technical Stuff icon, but see the previous section for an explanation of why you may not want to skim over this material.

Foolish Assumptions

The format of this masterpiece requires me to make some assumptions about you, the reader. I assume that you're someone who needs to know a lot about hedge funds in a short period of time. You may be a staff member or director at a large pension, foundation, or endowment fund, and you may need to invest in hedge funds in order to do your job well, even if you aren't a financial person. I assume that you're someone who has plenty of money to invest (whether it's yours or not) and who could benefit from the risk-reduction strategies that many hedge funds use. Maybe you've inherited your money, earned it as an athlete or performer, gained it when you sold a company, or otherwise came into a nice portfolio without a strong investment background.

I also assume that you have some understanding of the basics of investing — that you know what mutual funds and brokerage accounts are, for example. If you don't feel comfortable with the basic information, you should check out *Investing For Dummies* or *Mutual Funds For Dummies*, both by Eric Tyson. (Calculus and statistics may not be prerequisites, but that doesn't mean I don't have any!)

No matter your situation or motives, my goal is to give you information so that you can ask smart questions, do careful research, and handle your money in order to meet *your* goals.

And if you don't have a lot of money, I want you to discover plenty of information from this book so that you'll have it at the ready someday. For now, you can structure your portfolio to minimize risk and maximize return with the tools that I provide in this book. You can find more strategies than you may know.

How This Book Is Organized

Hedge Funds For Dummies is sorted into parts so that you can find what you need to know quickly. The following sections break down the structure of this book.

Part 1: What Is a Hedge Fund, Anyway?

The first part describes what hedge funds are, explains how managers structure them, and gives you a little history on their development. It also covers the nuts and bolts of SEC regulation and the process of buying into a hedge fund. Go here for the basics.

Part 2: Looking at Alternative Investment Strategies

In this part, I cover the ways that hedge funds invest and cover the ways that ordinary investors can work some of these strategies into their portfolios. Over the years, exchange traded funds and mutual funds have emerged to make many hedge fund strategies accessible. Other strategies can be copied on your own, if you know what to do.

Part 3: Determining Whether Alternative Investments Are Right For You

Part 3 is an overview of the investment process, including information about risk, return, and cash flow. This information can help you evaluate hedge funds, other alternative investments, and maybe even the traditional mutual funds offered in your employer's retirement plan.

This part also covers ways you can evaluate a hedge fund's risk-adjusted performance. You've probably heard of a handful of headline-grabbing hedge-fund scams, and you can find plenty of investors who have learned the hard way just how much risk their hedge funds had.

Part 4: Special Considerations Regarding Hedge Funds

Part 4 covers some additional information that you need to know such as how to get help with your investment and how to check out the background of the fund and fund manager before you invest. My goal is to help you do the right thing with your money, and this section helps you make the decisions that will achieve this goal.

Part 5: The Part of Tens

In this For Dummies-only part, you get to enjoy some top 10 lists. I present 10 reasons to invest in hedge funds, 10 reasons to avoid them, and 10 myths about the hedge-fund business.

Icons Used in This Book

You'll see five icons scattered around the margins of the text. Each icon points to information you should know or may find interesting about hedge funds. They go as follows:



This icon notes something you should keep in mind about hedge-fund investing. It may refer to something I've already covered in the book, or it may highlight something you need to know for future investing decisions.



Tip information tells you how to invest a little better, a little smarter, a little more efficiently. The information can help you ask better questions of your hedge fund manager or make smarter moves with your money.



I've included nothing in this book that can cause death or bodily harm, as far as I can figure out, but plenty of things in the world of hedge funds can cause you to make expensive mistakes. These points help you avoid big problems.



I put the boring (but sometimes helpful) academic stuff here. I even throw in a few equations. By reading this material, you get the detailed information behind the investment theories, some interesting trivia, or some background information.

Beyond the Book

In addition to the wealth of information on hedge funds that I provide in this book, you also gain access to even more help and information online. Go to www.dummies.com and search for "Hedge Funds For Dummies Cheat Sheet" for a additional content that accompanies this book.

Where to Go from Here

Well, open up the book and get going! Allow me to give you some ideas. You may want to start with Chapter 1 if you know nothing about hedge funds so you can get a good sense of what I'm talking about. If you need to set up your investment objectives, look at Chapters 14 and 15. If you want to know what hedge fund managers are doing with your money, turn to Chapters 7 through 10. And if you're about to buy into a hedge fund, go straight to Chapter 18 so that you can start your due diligence.

If you aren't a big enough investor for hedge funds but hope to be some day, start with Chapters 5, 6, and 11 to discover more about structuring portfolios. Chapter 4 can help you meet your investment objectives as a small investor.

A Final Note

Any opinions in this book are mine alone and do not reflect the positions of any employers or clients.

What Is a Hedge Fund, Anyway?

IN THIS PART . . .

You read about hedge funds in the financial press. You hear about their ability to generate good returns in all market cycles. And you wonder — just what is this investment? In this part, you find out. Part I covers definitions and descriptions you hear in the hedge fund world, offers the basics on just how much regulatory oversight hedge funds have, and lets you know how to buy into a hedge fund.

- » Knowing the long and short of hedge funds
- » Discovering the history of hedge funds
- Factoring a fund's position on alpha into your investment decision
- » Distinguishing between absolutereturn funds and directional funds
- » Acquainting yourself with the important hedge fund players
- » Perusing the fee structure of hedge funds

Chapter **1**

Hedge Funds: Alternative Assets and Alternative Strategies

ou see hedge funds in the news all the time, but it's hard to know exactly what they are. That's because, at its essence, a hedge fund is a bit of a mystery. A *hedge fund* is a lightly regulated investment partnership that invests in a range of securities as the managers attempt to increase expected return while reducing risk.

Hedge funds are part of a growing class of *alternative investments*. These are funds that look to upend traditional relationships between risk and return, offering investors better expected returns for a given level of risk. This doesn't mean that they are necessarily safer or better performing, by the way. There's much

mystique surrounding hedge funds and alternatives that make them seem special, but they are not. They're just different.

Over the years, most hedge fund managers have concentrated on their investment strategies rather than the structure of the fund. The investment styles they use have come to be known as alternative strategies, and they're now available in a range of investments, including exchange-traded funds and other formats that are accessible to just about anyone with money to invest.

Hedge fund and alternative managers today take on the roles of risk managers, investment bankers, venture capitalists, and currency speculators, and they affect discussions in boardrooms at brokerage firms, corporations, and central banks all over the world.

In this chapter, I cover the basic vocabulary of alternative investing. Having this knowledge helps you understand the purpose of these funds. Then you can get into the details of the structure. Also, I clarify what a hedge fund is and what it isn't, which is important because you come across a lot of myth and misinformation out there. The information you find here serves as a springboard for the topics I introduce throughout the rest of the book, so get ready to dive in.

Defining Hedge Funds

Here's the first thing you should know about hedge funds: They have no clear identity or definition. In the investment world, "I run a hedge fund" has the same meaning as "I am a consultant" in the rest of the business world. The speaker may be managing money for other people and making millions (or billions), or they may be looking for a socially acceptable reason for not having a real job. The money manager may be investing conservatively or taking aggressive risks, beating the market and then some or barely breaking even.

The term does have meaning. Here's the short answer:

A hedge fund is an investment partnership that uses a range of assets and strategies to generate a high level of return relative to the amount of risk taken.

Of course, if it were that simple, there wouldn't be enough material for an entire book. Consider the pages that come after this to be the long answer.

Defining Alternative Strategies

Traditional money management involves buying such real money assets as stocks and bonds, then selling them to take advantage of better opportunities or return money to the account owners. The money can be invested, meaning that the assets are held for a long period of time, or they can be traded, meaning that they're bought and sold frequently to take advantage of short-term changes in market prices. The risk and return of these investments are closely tied to the risk and return of the entire market.

Alternative strategies involve assets and investment techniques that have riskand-return profiles that are different from those of the stock and bond markets. They fall into two main categories: absolute-return funds and directional funds. I look at the differences between the two in the following sections.

Absolute-return strategies

Sometimes called a "nondirectional fund," an absolute-return fund is designed to generate a steady return no matter what the market is doing. The very first hedge fund had an absolute-return objective using a long-short strategy (see Chapter 11), and that approach stuck.

Although absolute-return funds are close to the true spirit of that original hedge fund, some consultants and fund managers prefer to stick with the label "absolutereturn fund" rather than "hedge fund." The thought is that hedge funds are too aggressive and alternative funds are too wild, while absolute-return funds are designed to be slow and steady. In truth, the label is just a matter of personal preference.



An absolute-return strategy is most appropriate for a conservative investor who wants low risk and is willing to give up some return in exchange. (See Chapter 9 for more information on structuring your portfolio.) Portfolio managers can use many different investment tools within an absolute-return strategy, a few of which I present in Part 3 of this book.



Some say that absolute-return funds generate a bond-like return, because like bonds, absolute-return funds have relatively steady but relatively low returns. The return target on an absolute-return fund is usually higher than the long-term rate of return on bonds, though. A typical absolute-return fund target is 6 percent to 8 percent, which is above the long-term rate of return on bonds and below the long-term rate of return on stock.

Directional strategies

Directional funds are alternative funds that don't hedge — at least not fully (see the section "Hedging is at the heart of it" for more on hedging). Managers of directional funds maintain some exposure to the market, but they try to get higher than expected returns for the risk that they take. Because directional funds maintain some exposure to the stock market, they're said to have a <code>stock-like return</code>. A fund's returns may not be steady from year to year, but they're likely to be higher over the long run than the returns on an absolute-return fund.

Directional funds are the glamorous funds that grab headlines for posting double or triple returns compared to those of the stock market. The fund managers may not do much hedging, but they have the numbers that get potential investors excited about hedge funds.



A directional strategy is most appropriate for aggressive investors willing to take some risk in exchange for potentially higher returns. (See Chapter 9 for more information on structuring your portfolio.)

Introducing Some Basic Concepts

This is a book, not a blog post, giving me plenty of room to cover the background of the investment business. It's an industry with a lot of smart, creative people who spend time thinking about new ways to help businesses raise money while helping investors manage risk. They come up with new tools for speculation and for protection, and they try to stay a step ahead of the competition.

All of this creative energy builds on the basics.

Alternative, to what?

The traditional asset classes are stocks, bonds, and cash. Stocks represent ownership in companies, bonds are a form of loan, and cash is, well, king. These assets form the market and the key metrics, like interest rates, exchange rates, and of course the market indexes.

Alternative assets are all of the things that investors can put their money into that are neither stocks, bonds, nor cash. This includes everything from real estate to bitcoin to the amount of carbon in the atmosphere.